
BOARD OF
TRUSTEES

May 2023

P A C K E T

1



DRAFT 

                    *        Requires Action 
**      According to Kent District Library Board of Trustee Bylaws, Article VII, Item 7.1.3, “Public comments will 
          be limited to 3 minutes per person or group and 15 minutes per subject.” 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Agenda 

 

 

 LOCATION 

KDL Spencer Township Branch, 14960 Meddler Ave, Gowen, MI   

 DATE & TIME  

Thursday, May 18, 2023, at 4:30 PM. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA* 

A. Approval of Agenda 

B. Approval of Minutes: April 20, 2023 

C. Request: Comstock Park Branch late closing on Friday, August 11, 2023, due to the annual 

Comstock Park Community Celebration.  

4. REGIONAL MANAGER UPDATE – KRAUSE, NELSON & SPENCER TOWNSHIP BRANCH 

UPDATE  
 

5. FINANCE REPORTS – April 2023* 
 

6. DIRECTOR’S REPORT – April 2023 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Policy Manual: Section 3.9 *       First Reading  
B. Policy Manual: Section 4 Patron Behaviors *      First Reading  
C. 2023 Board of Trustees Schedule Amendment*       

8. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS  
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS** 
 

10. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

11. MEETING DATES 

Next Regular Meeting: Thursday, June 15, 2023 – KDL Service + Meeting Center, 4:30 PM 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT*  

2



DRAFT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Meeting Minutes 

 

 LOCATION 

Kent District Library Service + Meeting Center, 814 West River Center Drive NE, Comstock Park, MI 
49321. 

 DATE + TIME  

Thursday, April 20, 2023, at 4:30 PM. 

BOARD PRESENT: Shirley Bruursema, Tracy Chrenka, Peter Dykhuis, Andrew Erlewein, Sheri Gilreath-
Watts, Nicole Lintemuth, Carla Moyer Hotz and Penny Weller. 

 
BOARD ABSENT: None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Josh Bernstein, Jaci Cooper, Jennifer DeVault, Sheri Glon, Liz Guarino, Randy Goble, 

Grahm Lawcock, Kim Lindsay, Brian Mortimore, Elvia Myers, Karen Small, Kurt Stevens 
and Lance Werner. 

 
GUESTS PRESENT: Kelaine Mish (joined at 5:19 PM) 
 
.. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Erlewein called the meeting to order at 4:30 PM. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. MOMENT OF SILENCE  
A KDL staff member's husband passed away earlier in the afternoon and Executive Director 

 Lance Werner asked that everyone take a moment of silence. 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA* 
A. Approval of Agenda 
B. Approval of Minutes: March 16, 2023 
C. Lakeland Library Cooperative Report: March 9, 2023 
D. Request: Walker Branch early closing on August 18, 2023, for carpet cleaning. 
E. Request: Byron Township Branch late closing on October 21, 2023, for Byron Township 

Branch 20th anniversary celebration. 
Motion: Ms. Weller moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. 
Support: Supported by Ms. Gilreath-Watts.  
RESULT: Motion carried. 

 
5. FINANCE REPORTS – March 2023* 

3



DRAFT 

The Interim Director of Finance Kim Lindsay gave a brief overview of year-to-date financials: 
• The KDL cash position at the end of March was $29.9M as compared to $29.7M at this time 

last year. All KDL funds are at work at various interest rates and rates of return. 
• The Atlanta Capital portfolio had a $137K positive bounce in March and the funds KDL has 

in the Huntington government-based liquidity funds have yielded more than 4.5%. 
• Revenues through March were at $26M or 88.1% of revenue budget as compared to $24.6M 

at this time in 2022. Increased revenue is due to property taxes and investment returns. 
• Expenditures through March were $8.5M or $26.5% of the expenditure budget, which is 

slightly above the 25% that KDL expected to spend for the first quarter of the year. This is 
because there are costs incurred at the beginning of the year that cover the full year, such 
as the HSA contribution, subscriptions and licenses, ILS fees, annual website fee, annual 
insurance premiums, and annual equipment lease payments, among others. 

• Disbursements greater than $50K for the month of March include: 
o Priority Health - $146,691.02 - employee health and dental insurance 
o Hitachi Capital America/Bibliotheca - $144,918.07 - annual lease payment for self-

check kiosks and similar equipment 
o TMC Furniture - $76,042.00 - WonderKnook project 
o IP Consulting - $61,789.91 – Colocation monthly payment and curbside texting fees 
o Everstream Holding - $55,485.74 - KDL-wide fiber 

• The KDL annual financial and pension plan audits begin April 17 and Finance is hard at 
work completing initial auditor requests. 

The Board asked questions of staff and staff responded. 
 

Motion: Mr. Dykhuis moved to receive and file the March 2023 finance reports as 
presented. 

Support: Supported by Ms. Bruursema.  
RESULT: Motion carried. 
 

6. DIRECTOR’S REPORT – March 2023 
• Executive Director Werner has profound gratitude for the Cascade team, from the Regional 

Managers to the staff, for the kindness, empathy and love they showed to a staff member 
whose husband was ill and recently passed away. 

• The pre-planning stage for the new eSports initiative is going well, and he looks forward to 
collaborating with colleges and universities around Grand Rapids in the future.  

• Happily, the Krause Memorial Branch Expansion Project has the potential to receive $2.5-
$3.5M in grant funds. 

• Mr. Werner visited Lansing to discuss a couple of bills to support public libraries.  
• He took a moment to recognize Director of Projects and Planning Jaci Cooper for the 

fantastic improvements she has made throughout the organization. 
• In June of 2023, Grattan Township will have a KDL Express Library System installed which 

will allow patrons to check out and return items at their own convenience. 
• Mr. Werner has been appointed the Vice Chair of the Library of Michigan Board. 

 

4



DRAFT 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
A. 1st Quarter Strategic Plan & KPI Update  

Director of Projects and Planning Jaci Cooper presented. 
 

B. Issue Analysis: RFP for Sort Assistant Recommendation * 
IT Director Kurt Stevens introduced Regional Manager II Karen Small, who demonstrated 
the new Sort Assistant Software. Network Systems Specialist Grahm Lawcock and 
Collections Manager Liz Guarino were present for the presentation as well.  
 
Motion: Ms. Bruursema moved to approve the Issue Analysis: RFP for Sort Assistant 
Recommendation.  
Support: Supported by Ms. Lintemuth.  
RESULT: Motion carried. 
 

C. Policy Manual Review: Section 3 Facilities + Operations*  
Motion: Ms. Weller moved to approve Policy Manual Review: Section 3 Facilities + 
Operations. 
Support: Supported by Ms. Moyer Hotz.  
RESULT: Motion carried. 

 
D. Policy Manual Review: Section 6.12 Board Member Compensation *  

Motion: Mr. Dykhuis moved to approve Policy Manual Review: Section 6.12 Board 
Member Compensation.  
Support: Supported by Ms. Moyer Hotz.  
RESULT: Motion carried. 

 
8. LIAISON REPRESENTATIVE COMMENTS – None. 

 
9. PUBLIC COMMENTS** -  

• Kelaine Mish mentioned that the KDL Policy Manual section 3.9 has fragmented sentences 
and grammatical errors.  

• Director of Library Operations Jennifer DeVault and Regional Manager I Lulu Brown secured 
$1M with the DDA for an Outdoor Garden and Playspace revamp at the Cascade Township 
Branch.  
 

10. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

Ms. Bruursema – Ms. Bruursema shared that Monday, April 24 is Right to Read day. She enjoyed 
the Kentwood Branch WonderKnook Ribbon Cutting and was pleasantly surprised to see 
several Branch Managers along with the City of Kentwood Mayor and Clerk at the festivities. 
Caledonia Township Branch Librarian Audrey Baker has been appointed to the Library of 
Michigan Board of Trustees. Next week is National Library Week. She appreciates the staff that 
attend the Board of Trustees meetings.  
 

5



DRAFT 

Ms. Chrenka – Ms. Chrenka attended the Spencer Township Community Report as well as the 
Cascade Township Branch. She asked a staff member a question and was delighted when she 
received an email from the staff following up with an answer.  
 
Mr. Dykhuis – Mr. Dykhuis is excited about all the innovations occurring at KDL.  
 
Mr. Erlewein – Chair Erlewein attended the mushroom harvesting program at the Alto Branch 
and is looking forward to going out in the woods to harvest them. He was impressed with the 
Sort Assistant software and its efficiency. He also wanted to make everyone aware that amidst 
construction Chicago will also be hosting a NASCAR race around the same time as the ALA 
Conference.  
 
Ms. Gilreath-Watts – Ms. Gilreath-Watts shared that her first experience with the library was 
through poetry. In honor of National Poetry Month, she shared the poem “My First Memory [of 
Librarians)” by Nikki Giovanni. 
 
Mr. Lintemuth – Ms. Lintemuth reminded everyone that April is Autism Awareness Month. 
Recently, she also shared Perk Pass information with a family in her community. As a result, that 
family found a fun new activity to do during Spring Break.  
 
Mr. Moyer Hotz – Ms. Moyer Hotz congratulated Director of Projects and Planning Jaci Cooper 
on the fabulous WonderKnook Ribbon Cutting. She also attended her first Community Report 
for the City of East Grand Rapids and had a fabulous time representing KDL.  
 
Ms. Weller – Ms. Weller attended the Write Michigan Award Ceremony and felt that it was a great 
experience for all. She was impressed with the work that Director of Engagement Randy Goble 
and his team did to make the Award Ceremony a terrific experience for the writers.  
 

11. MEETING DATES 
Regular Meeting: Thursday, May 18, 2023 – Kent District Library Spencer Township Branch, 
4:30 PM. 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion: Ms. Weller moved for adjournment at 6:16 PM.  
Support: Supported by Ms. Moyer Hotz.  
RESULT: Motion carried.  

 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL FOR DISTRIBUTION 

6



7



         

                    

Monthly Cash Position Per Bank
Month ended April 30

2023 2022

Account Rate Amount Rate Amount

0.500% $4,437,657.30 0.100% $4,657,979.23

1.004% $2,725,394.46 0.009% $10,860,536.99

2.647% $56,675.82 0.464% $55,888.26

$11,756,715.00 $11,565,543.00

$9,071,702.75 $27,139,947.48

$28,048,145.33

* Includes Trust Pooled fund balances

NOTE:  Totals do not include Petty Cash or Branch Cash drawer balances

Atlanta Capital Investments Atlanta Capital Investments

Huntington Liquidity Portal

Account

Huntington Checking Account Huntington Checking Account

Huntington Investment Account Huntington Investment Account

*Kent County Pooled Funds *Kent County Pooled Funds

Checking Account 

17.16%

Investment Account

40.02%

Pooled Funds 

.21%

Atlanta Capital

42.61%  

Checking Account

15.82%     

Investment 

Account

9.72%

Pooled Funds

.20%

Atlanta Capital 

41.92%  

Liquidity Portal

32.34%

8



         

                    

Monthly Revenues and Expenditures
Month ended April 30

Budget to Actual with Prior Year Comparison Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

Revenues Account Amount

2022 Actual 2022 YTD Revenues 89.3%

2023 Actual 2023 YTD Revenues 89.8%

2023 Budgeted

2022 YTD Expenditures 32.6%

Expenditures 2023 YTD Expenditures 34.0%

2022 Actual

2023 Actual

2023 Budgeted 32,222,068$                              

24,521,394$                              

26,463,676$                              

29,478,777$                              

9,997,274$                                

10,945,120$                              

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

2022
Actual

2023
Actual

2023
Budgeted

2022
Actual

2023
Actual

2023
Budgeted

M
ill
io
ns

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2022 YTD Revenues 2023 YTD Revenues 2022 YTD Expenditures 2023 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

2022

Actual

2023

Actual

2023

Budgeted

2022

Actual

2023

Actual

2023

Budgeted

M
il

li
o

n
s

Revenues                                                  Expenditures

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2022 YTD Revenues 2023 YTD Revenues 2022 YTD Expenditures 2023 YTD Expenditures

Comparative Percentages Current & Prior Year

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



Director's Report
April 2023
Gaines + Kentwood 
The sense of renewal in springtime is refreshing!
The Kentwood Branch will soon have beautiful
new floral arrangements in the planters on the
upstairs balcony, courtesy of the generous
Friends of the Kentwood Library. This will help
to create a welcoming environment for patrons
wanting to enjoy the outdoors. The Friends
group’s support of the branch is greatly
appreciated!  

Youth-focused staff at both branches are
currently shifting gears with a break from
Storytime gatherings. This break does not
translate to lots of downtime, however, as staff
are busy visiting several schools to drum up
excitement for the library. They are getting
students signed up for library cards and sharing
some of the plans in store during Summer
Wonder. This is an exciting time for staff and
students alike! 

Kelloggsville + Wyoming 

Spring for the Wyoming Branch means LEAP (Library Equity
Access Pass) into Reading visits from many of Wyoming’s
local elementary schools. Schools bus children to the
library for an entertaining skit, Summer Wonder
promotion, library card registration and a tour of the
library. This spring the Wyoming Branch also hosted a
successful Spanish Storytime performed by Community
Engagement Manager Sara Proano from KDL’s Community
Engagement Department. Wyoming preschoolers read
“Don’t Touch My Hair” by Sharee Miller and made
accompanying art projects that were displayed at the
Wyoming Branch last month. Regional Manager I Anjie
Gleisner and Regional Manager II Karen Small are working
with the City of Wyoming Facilities Department to have
new carpeting installed at the Wyoming Branch later this
year. Cascade Branch Librarian Dave Palma  recently
joined the Wyoming team as a Regional Manager II  in
Training. 
 
The Kelloggsville Branch will be hosting a Cram Night for
students and has been experimenting with providing
special quiet times to aid studying during exam times.
Branch Librarian Cameron Holmes is busying preparing for
a 5 Year Birthday Bash to celebrate 5 years in operation for
the Kellogssville Branch. This event will take place later
this summer.  Krause, Nelson + Spencer 

Springtime can only mean one thing for youth branch librarians---making visits to area schools to promote
Summer Wonder! Youth staff do a wonderful job getting students excited to continue reading over the summer
and to participate in the fabulous programs that will be happening. 
 
The Krause Memorial, Nelson Township, and Spencer Township Branches all hosted spring craft extravaganza
programs that were very well attended. Children and parents all enjoyed working on imaginative crafts while
spending time together. 
 
Spring is also a good time for participating in community programs and events. The Spencer Branch held the
annual egg hunt on April 1. This program, which is sponsored by The Friends of the Library, is a perennial
community favorite. 
The Nelson Township Branch staff participated in the Cedar Springs Community Night on April 20, where they
enjoyed connecting with residents and chatting with them about the great library services that are available to
residents. 
 
The Krause Memorial Branch staff are hard at work on plans for the “14th annual Reading Rocks” in Rockford
reading festival, which takes place on June 3. This year’s festival will showcase 40+ authors in Authors’ Row. The
featured author will be Brynne Barnes, author of Black Girl Rising, Colors of Me, and Books Do Not Have Wings. All
are welcome to attend this impressive community event! 21



KDL has hired 31 unique presenters to bring a wide variety of programs to KDL patrons. 
 These will include puppet shows, magicians, musical acts, llamas (!), farm animals and
reptiles…to name a few. 
The Marketing Communication Department is putting finishing touches on all the branch
calendars, logs, workbooks, Kaleidoscopes, posters, etc. 
Thousands of books will be delivered to the Service Center the week of May 8. The
workgroup will then sort and pack these up for delivery to the branches in early June. 
The summer adult prizes (picnic blankets) have been received and are ready to be shipped
to branches. 
Summer Wonder workgroup members are training and informing staff on all things summer
during the many summits (for Aassistant Branch Librarians, Shelvers, BLs, and youth staff) in
May. 
Youth staff will be out in the schools during the month of May to promote Summer Wonder
to area students. This awesome video will help with promotion:
https://youtu.be/Kq9OswSlRVc 
Billboards are going up across the county to alert the masses: 

It is May, which means we are gearing up for another fantastic Summer Wonder. The Summer
Wonder workgroup and Programming Department started work last August on this year’s
program. It is truly a system-wide effort as the teams work together to launch the biggest and
most successful summer program in Michigan. 
Here are some highlights: 

 
Phew! Anticipation is brewing and staff are gearing up. Bring on Summer Wonder 2023! 

Programming 
 Summer Wonder 

22

https://youtu.be/Kq9OswSlRVc


A Requiem for the Pandemic 

The United States ended the Public Health Emergency (PHE) effective 5-11-2023. This brings to
close a chapter in our collective history that began early in 2020, known simply today as, “the
pandemic.” While it was not a fun time, we recently took stock in our organization’s response to
rally around the associated challenges and find new and different ways to exist as a library when
traditional means of service were challenged or mandated to be closed.  There are several positive
issues and actions that we can be proud of and we wanted to close out this experience by sharing
some highlights and takeaways. 

KDL had a “Pandemic Procedures Policy” on file and updated prior to January of 2020, enabling
planning for personal protective equipment, and other precautionary measures. This policy was
shared throughout the country with scores of libraries seeking a “playbook or guidelines” during
the month leading up to the event.  Our team was ready for the mandatory vaccination
requirements issued by the Office of the President, with technology and documentation in place.
There’s value in being prepared and value in helping others with one’s preparedness.  

Upon notice of mandatory shut-down, our team members didn’t hang their heads and wait for
instruction. With information changing by the hour and decisions being made in real time, our team
members took the initiative and explored new and creative methods for delivering services. From
online Storytimes and ‘take & make’ projects with science and math themes to support parents
who were thrusted into home schooling, to promoting our e-collection and online resources.
Remote training modules for all roles in our workforce were assembled and dispersed promptly and
professionally. It was a proud time to see our team members become extremely adaptive to the
circumstances. We proved to ourselves that which we had intuitively known, ours is an adaptable
and nimble workforce.  

Our leadership worked on creative ways to support the financial and emotional needs of our team
members, from providing every employee with a $500 pandemic stipend to help with additional
unplanned expenses, paid time off for ‘quarantine time’ (months before such leave time was
federally required) to compressed workweeks (50% of time for 100% pay, then 75%, then
returning). Physical health was supported with comprehensive cleaning services in the branches
following suspected exposures, masking and physical barriers. Mental health was supported with
Wellness Challenges (healthy eating, physical exercise, yoga, mindfulness) through a mobile app
purchased for our staff. Being an employer-of-choice means we find ways to add value to our
workforce even when we’re not required to do so. 

Curbside Service was created along with technology and procedures to support such new services.
Staff worked staggered schedules to create physical space and learned the pleasure and challenges
of working in the presence of their children and pets. Programs shifted to online delivery with
innovative interactivity for all ages and interests. Patience and flexibility are virtuous. 

23



A Requiem for the Pandemic ( Cont. ) 
 

Weekly communications and updates occurred to keep people apprised, and a new standard of
online meetings became the norm with managers meeting weekly (a process that was recognized
as valuable despite the pandemic and continues to this day.) Our workforce learned the Office365
platform and MS Teams quickly, resulting in our ability to remotely collaborate on work and
documents. Communication happens across multiple methods and the office of yesterday is not
the office of today. 

Past efforts to support electronic collections and resources proved brilliant as the library never
truly ‘shut down’ rather, services were delivered differently and patrons that traditionally
hesitated to use electronic resources were introduced to new platforms and expanded their
perceptions of the definition of a library and library services. Patrons were supported with
thousands of Wifi Hotspots and our team members were supported with technology to take home
to perform their work. The library we all joined is not the library we all exist in today, nor will it be
the library we support tomorrow, as we must always continue to evolve. 

MIOSHA provided organizations such as ours with guidance as quickly as possible and we filled in
the gaps where they existed. Our staff were trained on such safety procedures with a “COVID Site
Supervisor” being assigned to every shift. KDL’s procedures and training materials were shared
with libraries throughout Michigan. Upon receiving a surprise inspection, we were delighted to
learn that the inspecting agent felt our checklists and training were worth sharing with others and
took samples and photos of our materials and documented processes. When asked to adhere to
certain standards to keep our team members and community safe, our team not only complies,
but takes it to a level of excellence not seen in all businesses or agencies.  

While we can give thanks for the gift of life and wellness, recognizing our workforce remarkably
remained relatively healthy, many of our KDL Family and friends experienced COVID related losses
with their family and friends which leaves a scar on our collective hearts to this day. 

Reflecting on this tumultuous and sad time, we know that we were tested by the disease and by
each other. Of the proud accomplishments listed above, another one stands out; Our ability to
respect differing opinions and find common ground to move forward as a team. It would be wrong
to not acknowledge the strife and stress that came with navigating the pandemic. We were all
learning together, and struggling together. We brought to the table our personal beliefs, values,
and passions which were on display daily. But perhaps the brightest takeaway of all was
recognition that our team members could have disagreements over ‘what’s best’, ‘what’s safest’,
and ‘what’s reasonable’, and still find common ground to move forward for the good of our
institution and the people we serve.      

24



Featured Department
Collection Development &
Collection Services 

In October 2022, Collection Development
Librarian Tammy Schneider kicked off a project
to add a CORE Picture Book Collection at all KDL
branches. The project team curated a list of 100
titles including classics as well as new favorites.
Collection Services Team Lead Rachel Cruzan,

Cataloging Parapro Yuko Roberts, and Collection
Services Assistant Megan Versluis have been

cataloging and processing the items since they
started arriving in March. Branches will receive

them just in time for Summer Wonder.  

In addition to the CORE picture books 40,000 new items have been
processed and catalogued for patrons since January.  

MelCat borrowing and lending continues to grow as patrons
discover the service. This year KDL patrons have borrowed 14,600
books from libraries across the state and KDL has loaned 9,006 to
other libraries.  

In February, Collection Services Manager Liz Guarino, Collections
Team Lead Rachel Cruzan and Collection Services Assistants
Janine Elliott and Jill Essenburg joined IT Director Kurt Stevens,
Regional Manager II Karen Small, Assistant Branch Librarian Jaime
Brooks, and Branch Librarian Dave Palma to visit Cincinnati Public
Library and Dayton Metro Public Library to learn more about
Automated Materials Handlers. The team learned more about
central sorters and branch sorters and made valuable connections
with staff at both libraries. 

At the end of April, Collection Services Assistants officially started
the process of reviewing all circulating hotspots to check for
Internet access and troubleshoot any problems on the devices.
This was previously done at the branch level, but having it done
by a small team at the Service Center will allow for more
consistency and a better patron experience. Holly Newcomer and
Sarah Foster trained all Collection Services Assistants on the
process and created procedures for the department. 25



Molly Dixon
Alpine Township 

Nominated by Liz Knapp
Helpful
"Kathy and Molly are champs when it
comes to noticing when our teen girls are
taking a little too long in the bathroom for
wholesome activities to be taking place.
They have both cleaned up the messes and
had awkward conversations with them
when necessary. What's more, they have
led some great discussions when we are
problem-solving teen behavior issues.
Thanks for being the "thinking team" and
being so solution-focused!

Nominated by Donna Cowart
Helpful 
"Our branch sometimes gets a patron who
speaks Spanish and not proficient in
English. This makes it hard to help them.
As I was trying to help a Spanish speaker
patron recently, Molly walked by and just
started speaking Spanish to the patron.
She took over from me and spent an hour
or so helping her. Thanks so much Molly!
We are lucky to have you and not just
because you speak Spanish."

Katie Kudos
April  2023 

Rachel Groters
Grandville 

Nominated by Marcia Van Drunen
Helpful
"I worked until closing last Fridy night for
the first time and was impatient with those
who stay until the last bitter second,
especially some of the regulars who were
making "no" effort to move towards the
exit. However, at the same time, I heard
Rachel in the WonderNook area interacting
with a family who were having a great time
playing, being WONDERFULLY patient.  
She encouraged them to wrap up their
time but without any sense that they were
an inconvenience, and in fact, answered
multiple questions they had and gave
some great input on what we have to offer
for programming for their future visits.
They left excited to come back and enjoy
the branch when they would be able to
stay longer. It was beautiful and a teaching
moment for me as well."

Hatka Kecalovic
Kentwood 

Nominated by Claire O'Tsuji 
Positive
"Hatka was crucial this past Spring Break
week. She absolutely crushed the prep for
crafts, the labs, the story times, everthing! I
am so thankful I have Hatka in my corner.
She did all this swiftly, efficiently, and with
an inspirational attitude. Thank you,
Hatka! #dreamteam"

26



Regular Board Meeting 
Thursday, June 15, 2023 
4:30 PM 
KDL Service + Meeting Center  

Regular Board Meeting 
Thursday, July 20, 2023 
4:30 PM 
KDL Plainfield Branch

Regular Board Meeting 
Thursday, August  17,  2023 
4:30 PM 
KDL Service + Meeting Center

Upcoming Meetings 

Upcoming Meetings +
Dates of Interest 

KDL Pension Meeting  
August 16, 2023
1:00 PM 
KDL Service + Meeting Center 

Dates of Interest 

27



New projects approved2

APRIL�
2023

MONTHLY�PROJECT�REPORT

Active Approved
Projects Completed

 since 01/23

Late (At Risk)

On Time

4

12

1610
1

In approval queue

Declined

Paused 0

3

NEWExpress�Library�Pilot�-�Grattan�Township

Grattan Township is a rural township of approximately 3.8K persons within Kent County, with its
closest KDL branches being Englehardt (Lowell), and Krause Memorial (Rockford), both of which are
approximately 15 miles away. Grattan Township has expressed desire and support for a physical
library presence and/or increased access to library materials. In response, KDL is purchasing an
Envisionware LibCabinet capable of housing up to 200 library items for patron checkout, which will be
stationed at the Grattan Township Office . By having KDL absorb this cost as opposed to the township,
KDL will also have the option to bring the machine to another location in the future in the event that
Grattan explores real estate options and wants a stronger physical branch presence.

Project Lead: Kurt Lardie
Status: On track (NEW)

Approval Date: 04.26.23
Due Date: 10.31.23

NEWSort�Assistant�Software�by�FE�Technologies

Processing incoming inventory has proven both inconsistent and time consuming for KDL staff,
representing both an inefficient use of staff time, an unsustainable use of materials and an unreliable
method for training and predictability. The new Sort Assistant Software by FE Technologies promises
a quick and efficient check in process going forward, complete with consistently formatted routing
slips that can be used throughout the process, reducing materials and time spent managing holds.

Project Lead: Karen Small
Status: On track (NEW)

Approval Date: 04.26.23
Due Date: 12.31.23

28



1,000�Books�Before�Kindergarten�(1KB4K)�Revamp

Artwork is now complete and initial previews have received high praise from Branch Librarians. The
project team is now critically reviewing the booklet mockup and how patrons will interact with the
landscape, wall calendar format and the marking tools. Due to budgeting constraints, tracking
booklets will be printed double-sided on thinner paper, which may not lend favorably to tracking with
markers. As such, staff will be instructed to encourage stickering and crayons for tracking progress. 
 Lastly, the team will be double checking all new and existing materials to ensure that ever 1KB4K logo
has been updated come the September launch.

Project Lead: Dawn Heerspink
Status: On track

Approval Date: 11.23.22
Due Date: 09.30.23

Project Lead: Elvia Myers
Status: At Risk - Timeline

Approval Date: 03.02.22
Due Date: 03.31.23

A survey has been sent out systemwide to collect final feedback on the training and implementation of
this project. After which, the team will meet to discuss and make any final changes before close out.

Email�Group�Streamline�+�Update

FE�Technologies�Wand�Rollout

All but two branches have completed scanning their entire collection for April, though the team
continues to level-set expectations for the manner and consistency in which wands are used. For
instance, all but seven of the twenty branches are currently using the wand to check in all of their
materials. A few of the smaller branches are only using the wand to check in materials when the
volume of check-ins becomes overwhelming. Happily, each month has proven to be an improvement
over the last. Though May will not reflect the team's goal for 100% wand use at all branches, the team
remains hopeful that June is when the magic will happen.

Project Lead: Karen Small
Status: On track

Approval Date: 01.18.23
Due Date: 08.31.23

Project Lead: Jennifer DeVault + Lulu Brown
Status: At Risk - Timeline and Scope

Approval Date: 03.02.22
Due Date: 03.31.23

Training on the KDL Way as it relates to “going further with service" is now complete and will be
included in an interactive KDL Way booklet that will serve as a refresher for existing staff and be
incorporated into onboarding. The booklet defines the KDL Way highlights its elements including out
fundamentals, core values, brand promise, purpose, and KDL's response framework. This booklet will
be formally introduced to managers at the Quarter 2 Manager Meeting in May and to all staff during
the May training summits. A poster reiterating the most important points of the KDL Way (engage,
assist, encourage patrons to return) is also being developed and will be distributed to branches for
internal display.

KDL�Way�Service�Vision�+�Training

29



Language�Accessibility:�Over�the�Phone�(OPI)

The project team has completed initial research on possible language service providers and gathered
preliminary information on associated services and costs, including selection criteria. Next, the team
plans to follow up with providers to gain more information on setup costs and customization features,
as well as to request service demos. Information gathered from these inquiries will aid in narrowing
down the top choices.

Project Lead: Yuliya Baker
Status: On track

Approval Date: 02.22.23
Due Date: 07.31.23

Eight extremely excited KDL Ambassadors have now completed ambassador training! Included in the
training is an overview of KDL history, an introduction to the website and information about the KDL
Leadership Team and Board of Trustees, a presentation on the KDL Way, a tour of the updated
Volunteer Hub and a thorough explanation of the Ambassador roles, including branch greeter, social
media challenges and being a secret shopper or a member of a Friends Group. To date, ambassadors
have carried out two secret shopper surveys and several impact challenges (wearing a KDL logo item,
handing out KDL bookmarks). The project team expects this project to be completely wrapped up
within the next month.

Project Lead: Deb Schultz
Status: At Risk - Timeline

Approval Date: 10.26.22
Due Date: 02.28.23

Library�Ambassador�Program�Pilot

Project Lead: Joshua Mosey
Status: On track

Approval Date: 02.22.23
Due Date: 01.31.24

Regional Managers gave valuable feedback regarding the frequency and accessibility of computer
guest passes, the project team is busy re-drafting procedures in order to encourage staff to pursue
new card sign up conversations with individuals who use guest passes on a regular basis. A small team
of project members also met with OrangeBoy, KDL's data research partner, to discuss a two-pronged
approach to engaging new cardholders that will send postcards, emails and online ads to potential
patrons throughout Summer Wonder programming and again during September (Library Card Sign-
Up Month). At the last meeting, the project team brainstormed new ways to reach area college
students and discussed potential partnerships that could maximize outreach during ArtPrize and
other public outreach events.

New�Cardholder�Drive

Project Lead: Hannah Lewis
Status: At Risk - Timeline

Approval Date: 08.17.22
Due Date: 03.31.23

Contracts for implementing Salesforce technology and working with Salesforce consultant Brian
Richards of Cloud 616 have been signed and work has begun on implementation: Single Sign On (SSO)
features and an Outlook Salesforce toolbar have been installed on applicable stakeholder devices.
Other than that, Salesforce is in the process of being custom-built to fit KDL’s needs, with a focus on
maintaining and improving relationships with community contacts and organizations. A team of 9 staff
with Salesforce licenses are testing how Salesforce works and how it can be changed to work best with
KDL’s needs. Meanwhile, a team of 5 staff without licenses are testing how data can be entered into the
system by staff without log-ins. The initial build is projected to take approximately six weeks, after
which training will take place.

Library�Relationship�Management�(CRM)

30



Project Lead: Elvia Myers
Status: On track

Approval Date: 01.25.23
Due Date: 12.31.23

The team is working with West Michigan University Associate Professor and Native American Affairs
Council Member Dee Sherwood on a KDL partnership involving the Native American Heritage Grant.
KDL will match funds for the program "5 Songs and Stories" from September through November of
2023.

One�Community�Relationship�Building

Physical�Collection�Audit

So far, the team has been working on compiling data related to the circulation, collection size and
associated budget for all periodicals, physical audiobooks and music CD's. This is being compared
with similar data trends from other library systems throughout the country to see how others are
moving forward. Next, the team will begin gathering data regarding in-branch use of these collections,
hopefully starting the discussion for next year's budget of these items.

Project Lead: Joshua Bernstein
Status: On track

Approval Date: 02.22.23
Due Date: 12.31.23

One�Book�One�KDL�2024

The project team had its first meeting in the month of April. So far, it is a robust group of members
made of Regional Managers, Branch Outreach + Programming Specialists (BOPS), and Branch
Librarians from across the system. There is a lot of excitement around confirming a keynote author
over the next couple of months, after which focus will turn to a venue and generating programming,
buzz and additional knowledge around the author and their work.

Project Lead: Hennie Vaandrager
Status: On track

Approval Date: 03.22.23
Due Date: 05.31.24

Nearly all of the books for this collection have arrived at the Service Center! The team is very excited to
share them with staff and patrons alike. The collection will be featured in the summer edition of the
Kaleidoscope, and Kevin Kammeraad is busy creating a video to promote it in the branches. A
Communication Bulletin has been sent out to all staff. Early reception has been very positive. For staff,
a fun "CORE Bingo game" will help staff familiarize themselves with the titles. For patrons, a printed
brochure will be arriving to branches shortly. All bibliographic records have been tagged and updated
in the KDL system so that the collection can easily be added to the CORE webpage.

Project Lead: Tammy Schneider
Status: On track

Approval Date: 11.23.22
Due Date: 05.31.23

Picture�Book�CORE�Collection

31



PolicyTech�to�SharePoint�Conversion

Systemwide�WonderKnook�Refresh

The team has been developing an engaging landing page for the KDL SharePoint site, where recent
procedures and Communication Bulletins are displayed prominently for staff awareness. The
audience and document "owner" for all 2023 Communication Bulletins are also being tagged with
keywords now to make it easier for folks to find Communication Bulletins from the past. Lastly, the
team reviewed procedure topics from PolicyTech and removed and renamed a few. These topics were
created a couple of years ago and some have seldom been used.

Project Lead: Grahm Lawcock + Trish Reid
Status: On track

Approval Date: 02.22.23
Due Date: 10.15.23

Project Lead: Missy Lancaster/Sarah Fox
Status: At Risk - Timeline

Approval Date: 09.23.21
Due Date: new due date of 05.31.23

Community buzz surrounding the WonderKnook playspaces is still going strong. One Kent County
family even visited all twenty branches! They capped it off with a final tour at the Service + Meeting
Center. All major WonderKnook pieces have been delivered and smaller pieces like the wooden
Wonderknook signs, table inserts, and decals are being delivered this week and next, along with some
installations have missing parts and/or that need to be replaced. Lastly, there are some pieces
purchased by the Friends of the Library that are still in process. The Plainfield Friends purchased a
lovely "baby garden" for patrons (shown below) so that the library's youngest members have a place
to explore (while attended) as their parent or caretaker enjoy the library space.

32



BUILDING�PROJECTS

Project Lead: Jennifer German
Status: N/A

Approval Date: N/A
Due Date: N/A

Tours of the Krause Memorial Branch for potential major donors has begun and more are being
scheduled. The Finance Cabinet continues to seek funding for the expansion project at the state and
federal levels. Representatives from the Finance Cabinet, including KDL Executive Director Lance
Werner, traveled to Lansing in April and met with Representatives and Senators of the Krause
Memorial Branch service area.

Krause�Memorial�(Rockford)

Tyrone Township is working with grant writer Amanda Peterson to apply for a MIchigan Community
Development Block Grant to help fund the new library. Executive Director Lance Werner, Director of
Engagement Randy Goble, Regional Manager Liz Knapp and Branch Librarian Katie Mitchel are writing
letters of support for the grant application. 

Project Lead: Liz Knapp
Status: N/A

Approval Date: N/A
Due Date: N/A

Tyrone�Township

In response to the Request for Proposal for the library expansion, architects have started visiting the
Walker Branch to assess needs and to gather information that will assist them in creating the proposal.
 

Project Lead: Craig Buno
Status: N/A

Approval Date: N/A
Due Date: N/A

Walker�

33



 

34



 

35



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

36

https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/7115460
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3022540
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3022540
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/2197219
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/2197219
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6480172
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/5808556
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9342249
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9342249
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/2461050
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9219213
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3782979
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/3782979
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6476277
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6476277
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C438187
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C917157
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C909786
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C909786
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C867278
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C879181
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C879181
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C902930
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C902922
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C891761
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C798102
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C798102
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C889417
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C934495
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C438187
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C911712
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C937688
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C884904
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C884904
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C872369
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C872369
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C914975
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C921899
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C763287
https://kdl.bibliocommons.com/v2/record/S174C932630
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9310810
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6384649
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8783654
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9140729
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6397003
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/6397003
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9219213
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8722705
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/7349338
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/7349338
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/9157517
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8723752
https://kdl.overdrive.com/media/8723752


  

STAFF CHANGES & ANNIVERSARIES 
May 2023 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

OPEN POSITIONS TYPE 

Branch Librarian – Walker Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Wyoming Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Walker  Part-time 

Shelver – Krause Memorial Part-time 

Assistant Branch Librarian – Kentwood Part-time 

Shelver – Kentwood Part-time 

Seasonal Library Interns (All Branches + Outreach Dept) Temporary 

Shelver – Gaines Township Part-time 

Regional Manager I – Englehardt / Alto Full-time 

Branch Librarian – Kentwood Full-time 
 

 
 
 
 
 

NEW HIRES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Kyle Strong Graphic Design Intern – MarCom May 8 

Wendy Charles Assistant Branch Librarian – Englehardt May 8 

Holli Land Assistant Branch Librarian – Byron Twp. / Grandville May 8 

DEPARTURES POSITION EFFECTIVE 

Henry Hong Assistant Branch Librarian – Kentwood April 28 

Karen Dykstra Assistant Branch Librarian – Grandville April 30 

Victor Puhy Shelver – Gaines Township May 7 

PROMOTIONS & 
TRANSFERS 

FROM TO EFFECTIVE 

Jonah Chickering Shelver – Kentwood 
Assistant Branch Librarian - 
Kentwood 

May 8 

Natalie Karsten 
Branch Librarian - 
Kentwood 

Branch Librarian – Byron 
Township 

May 22 

37



EMPLOYEE ANNIVERSARIES 
(JUNE) 

BRANCH OR DEPARTMENT LENGTH OF SERVICE 

Karen Small Wyoming / Kelloggsville 37 years 

Patricia Wells Gaines Township 35 years 

Kathleen Potts Walker 32 years 

Jocelyn Yost Grandville 29 years 

Connie Wheat Krause Memorial 23 years 

Lynne Eder Walker 18 years 

Debora Den Herder Cascade 16 years 

Amy Waite Krause Memorial 15 years 

Shannon Vanderhyde Krause Memorial 12 years 

Linda Pyne Nelson Township 11 years 

Adam Flynn Alto / Englehardt 9 years 

Liz Knapp Walker / Alpine / Tyrone Township 9 years 

Paula Wright Comstock Park 7 years 

Catherine Gutowski Alto 6 years 

Leigh Verburg Cascade 6 years 

Brad Baker Marketing/Communications 5 years 

Julie Gillich Byron Township 5 year 

Heather Blake Grandville 4 years 

Alyssa Coe Plainfield 4 years 

Tabitha Schaub-Carter Wyoming 4 years 

Sarah Johnston Patron Services 3 years 

Rebecca Avella Walker 2 years 

Brandy Boyington Sub Pool 2 years 

Sandy Feutz Plainfield 2 years 

Rachel Minor Wyoming 1 year 

Mary DeBoode Krause Memorial 1 year 

Ben Eastman Collection Services 1 year 

Sarah Foster Collection Services 1 year 

Joshua Garvelink Grandville 1 year 

Kiosha Jeltema Kentwood / Gaines Township 1 year 

April Koehler Caledonia 1 year 

Caleb Perkins Tyrone Township 1 year 

Anne Schroeder Sub Pool 1 year 

38



 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES ATTENDANCE - 2023 

*BOARD PARTICIPATION VIA TELECONFERENCE 

TRUSTEE NAME MEETING DATE  
 
 

TRUSTEE NAME MEETING DATE 

    

    

    

     

 

 
SHIRLEY 

BRUURSEMA 
TRACY 

CHRENKA 
ANDREW 

ERLEWEIN 
PETER  

DYKHUIS 

 

SHERRI 
GILREATH 

WATTS 

CARLA 
MOYER 
HOTZ 

 

NICOLE 
LINTEMUT

H 

PENNY 
WELLER 

January 19, 2023 X X X X X X X X 

February 16, 2023 X* X X X X X X X 

March 16, 2023 X X X X X X X X 

April 20, 2023 X X X X X X X X 

May 18, 2023         

June 15, 2023         

July 20, 2023         

August 17, 2023         

September 21, 2023         

October 12, 2023         

October 26, 2023         

November 16, 2023         

December 21, 2023         

39



 

POLICY MANUAL 
1 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

POLICY MANUAL
May 2023 Updates 

40



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
2 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 

  

SECTION 1: Collection + Reference 

SECTION 2: Circulation  

SECTION 3: Facilities + Operations 

SECTION 4: Patron Behavior 

SECTION 5: Budget + Finance 

SECTION 6: Personnel 

APPENDIX 

41



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
3 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SECTION 1 

 FACILITIES + OPERATIONS. 
 

 
 

3.1 Exhibits 
3.2  Literature Display + Distribution 
3.3  Public Relations 
3.4  Library Programs 
3.5  Lost + Found Policy 
3.6  Branch Library Locations 
 3.6.1 Building, Enlarging or Renovating Library Buildings 
 3.6.2 Support for Building Projects 
 3.6.3 Acceptance of Non-KDL Purchased Technology 
3.7  Meeting Room Use 
3.8 Planned Closings 
 3.8.1 Emergency Closings 

3 

Formatted: Left

42



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
4 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

 3.8.2 Bereavement or Funeral Closings 
3.9 Library VehiclesEDITS 
3.10 Building Safety 
 

 

43



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
6 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

KDL POLICY 3.9 
LIBRARY + PERSONAL VEHICLES  
LAST REVISED 3.16.23 
All employees who operate company and private vehicles on KDL business, as well as employees who are 
subject to perform any driving duties as assigned.  Drivers,  must have a valid Michigan driver’s license, 
proof of insurance (if driving their own vehicle) and obey state laws while using KDL and personal vehicles.  
State Motor Vehicle (MVRs) will be obtained by the Facilities Manager and used as the source of verifying driver 
history. MVRs will be obtained and updated by the State of Michigan through subscriptions services to comply 
with KDL’s insurance provider guidelines.  KDL will obtain written authorization from employees who drive 
for regular KDL business.  Major violations on the employee record will prohibit an employee from driving on 
KDL Business. Smoking, using e-cigarettes, vaping, or chewing tobacco is prohibited in the KDL vans and 
bookmobile. Use of cell phones, taking calls, making calls or texting, is prohibited while the driving the KDL 
Van or Bookmobile.

44



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
7 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

PATRON BEHAVIOR  

 
 
 

PATRON  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

4.1: Safety + Personal Behavior 
 

4.1.1 Violations of Law 
 4.1.2 Weapons 
 

4.1.3 Drugs, Alcohol + Smoking EDITS  
 4.1.4 Animals 
 

4.1.5 Personal Property 
 4.1.6 Blocking of Aisles, Doors + Entrances 
 4.1.7 Staff-Only Areas EDITS 
 4.1.8 Interference with Staff 
 4.1.9 Unauthorized Use 
 4.1.10 Considerate Use 
 4.1.11 Noise 
 4.1.12 Odor 
 4.1.13 Bodily Fluids + Waste 
 4.1.14 Food + Drink 
 4.1.15 Restrooms 
 

4.1.16 Dress Codes 
 4.1.17 Harassment 
 

4.1.18 Identification 
 4.1.19 Recreational Equipment + Personal Transport Devices 
 

4.1.20 Panhandling, Solicitation + Selling 
 

4.1.21 Campaigning, Interviewing, Petitioning, Etc. 
 4.1.22 Children in the Library 
 

4.1.23 
4.1.24 

Face Mask Requirement during Pandemic  
Sleeping in the Library *** NEW***  

4 

Formatted: Font color: Red

Formatted: Font color: Red

Formatted: Font color: Red

45



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
8 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

PATRON BEHAVIOR , cont.  

 * Summary of Patron Responsibilities EDITS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.2: Use + Preservation of Library Materials + Property 
 

4.2.1 Copyright Policy EDITS 
4.3:  Acceptable Technology Use 
 4.3.1 Photography + Videography Policy 
 

4.3.2 Social Networking Policy 
 *Acceptable Use Policy 
4.4: Disciplinary Process for Library Facilities 
4.5: Right of Appeal 

 

 

Formatted: Font color: Red

46



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
9 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

KDL POLICY 4.1 
SAFETY + PERSONAL BEHAVIOR 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
The Kent District Library (the “Library”) is open for specific and designated civic, educational and cultural 
uses, including reading, studying, writing, participating in scheduled Library programs and using Library 
materials. In order to provide resources and services to all people who visit the Library facilities in an 
atmosphere of courtesy, respect, and excellent service, the Library Board has adopted this Patron Behavior 
Policy. The purpose of the Patron Behavior Policy is to assist the Library in fulfilling its mission as a 
community resource enriching life, stimulating intellectual curiosity, fostering literacy and encouraging an 
informed citizenry. 

 
The following rules of conduct shall apply to all buildings and all branches—interior and exterior—and all 
grounds controlled and operated by the Library (“Library facilities”) and to all persons entering in or on 
the premises, unless otherwise specified. 

 
KDL POLICY 4.1.1 
VIOLATIONS OF LAW 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Committing or attempting to commit an activity in violation of federal, state, or local law, ordinance or 
regulation (including but not limited to assault, larceny, and removing library material from the property 
without authorization through the approved lending procedures or vandalism) is prohibited. 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.2 
WEAPONS 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Carrying guns, pistols or other weapons, except as specifically permitted and exempt from local regulation 
by law, is prohibited. 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.3 
DRUGS, ALCOHOL + SMOKING 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Possessing, selling, distributing, or consuming any alcoholic or intoxicating beverage, illegal drug, or drug 
paraphernalia is prohibited; provided that aAlcohol may be permitted at certain Library-sponsored events 
if specifically approved by the Library, and within compliance of state and local laws. 

 

Formatted: Font: Italic, Condensed by  0.05 pt

47



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
10 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

Persons  noticeably  under  the  influence  of  any  controlled  substance  or  alcoholic  or intoxicating 
liquor are not allowed on Library property. 

 
Smoking, using e-cigarettes, vaping, or chewing tobacco is prohibited on Library property. 
 

KDL POLICY 4.1.4 
ANIMALS 
LAST REVISED 6.14.19 
 
Animals are not permitted in the Library other than therapy animals and service animals (as 
defined by law) for those individuals with disabilities, those used in law enforcement, or for Library 
programming. 
 
Patrons are legally responsible for the behavior of their service and therapy animals. Per state law, 
animals will be asked to leave if the animal is out of control and causes a significant disturbance, 
or if the animal is not housebroken, has an accident, or otherwise damages or soils library property. 
 

KDL POLICY 4.1.5 
PERSONAL PROPERTY 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Personal property brought into the Library is subject to the following: 
 

1. The Library personnel may limit the number of parcels carried into the Library. The Library 
may also limit the size of items. For example, the Library prohibits large items such as 
suitcases, duffle bags or large plastic garbage bags. 

2. The Library is not responsible for personal belongings left unattended. 
3. The Library does not guarantee storage for personal property. 
4. Personal possessions must not be left unattended or take up seating or space if needed by 

others. 
 
The Executive Director or designee may make exceptions and accommodations for patrons. 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.6 
BLOCKING OF AISLES, DOORS + ENTRANCES 
LAST REVISED 6.14.19 
 
All doors, aisles, and entrances must remain obstacle-free to keep in compliance with fire code and to 
prevent tripping hazards for other patrons. This includes a prohibition of running power cords across aisles 

Commented [LK1]: Removed extra spaces 
 

48



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
11 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

or other areas that are used for walking. 
 

KDL POLICY 4.1.7 
STAFF-ONLY AREAS 
LAST REVISED 6.14.19 
 
Patrons shall not be permitted in any areas designated as “staff only” unless otherwise permitted by the 
Executive Director,  or designee or accompanied by a staff member. 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.8 
INTERFERENCE WITH STAFF 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Patrons may not interfere with the staff’s performance of duties in the Library or on Library property. This 
includes engaging in conversation or behavior that monopolizes or forces the attention of staff for an 
extended period of time on non-library related topics, inappropriate personal comments, sexual advances, 
or physical and/or verbal harassment. 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.9 
UNAUTHORIZED USE 
LAST REVISED 6.14.19 
 
Patrons must leave the Library at closing time and may not use the library after closing time unless 
authorized by the Executive Director or his or her designee. Furthermore, any patron whose privileges to 
use the Library have been denied may not enter the Library. Any patron whose privileges have been limited 
may not use the Library in any manner that conflicts with those limits placed on the patron by the Executive 
Director, his or her designee, or the Library Board. 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.10 
CONSIDERATE USE 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Behaviors that disrupt the library use of other individuals or in any way endanger staff or other patrons are 
prohibited. Such behaviors include but are not limited to: 

1. Spitting; 
2. Running, pushing, shoving or other unsafe physical behavior; 
3. Climbing furniture; 
4. Using obscene or threatening language or gestures. 

 
 

Formatted: Font color: Red

49



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
12 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

 
 

KDL POLICY 4.1.11 
NOISE 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Producing or allowing any loud, unreasonable, or disturbing noises in designated “quiet areas” of the library 
that interfere with other patrons’ use of the Library or which can be reasonably expected to disturb other 
persons or have the intent of annoying other persons, including yelling, cheering, talking (with others or in 
monologues) or noises from electronic, entertainment, and communication devices, such as cell phones, 
tablets, headphones, and radio, is prohibited. Youth areas are not designated as a quiet area and may have 
more noise. 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.12  
ODOR 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Offensive odor, including but not limited to odor due to poor hygiene or overpowering perfume or cologne 
that causes a nuisance is prohibited. 
 

KDL  POLICY 4.1.13  
BODILY FLUIDS + WASTE  

  New 3.18.2021 
 

Patrons may not be in the library with bodily fluids and/or waste on themselves, their clothes or their   
belongings. Patrons must also not allow bodily fluids or waste to spill onto others or otherwise come in 
contact with furniture or other surfaces in the Library where patrons or staff could be exposed.  

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.14 
FOOD + DRINK 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Eating or drinking may occur in designated areas of any Kent District Library branch. Eating or drinking in 
Library meeting rooms is subject to rules of the local governmental unit. 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.15 
RESTROOMS 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 

50



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
13 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

Misuse of restrooms, including laundering, sleeping, shaving, hair cutting or trimming, bathing, and sexual 
activity is prohibited. Library materials may not be taken into restrooms. 
 

KDL POLICY 4.1.16 
DRESS CODE 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Shirts and shoes are required for health reasons and must be worn at all times inside the Library and on 
Library property. 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.17 
HARRASSMENT 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Staring, photographing, video recording, audio recording, following, stalking, harassing, arguing with, 
threatening, or behaving in a manner (1) which can reasonably be expected to disturb Library users or staff 
while such staff or patrons are in the Library or on Library property; and (2) that interferes with the Library 
patrons’ use of the Library or the ability of the staff person to do his or her job is prohibited. 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.18 
IDENTIFICATION 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Patrons must provide identification to Library staff when requested. Reasons for identification include but 
are not limited to safety, the filing of an incident report, and library card registration. 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.19 
RECREATIONAL EQUIPMENT + PERSONAL TRANSPORT DEVICES 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Use of skateboards, rollerblades, roller skates, or other wheeled form of recreational equipment is not 
allowed in the Library or on Library property. Library patrons must park bicycles or other recreational 
vehicles only in authorized areas. Wheelchairs and other personal transport devices are permitted by those 
individuals with disabilities or injuries. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

51



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
14 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

 
 

KDL POLICY 4.1.20 
PANHANDLING, SOLICITATION + SELLING 
LAST REVISED 6.14.19 
 
Panhandling or soliciting Library staff or patrons for money, products, or services inside the Library or on 
Library property is prohibited. Sales of products or services that are incidental to Library programming may 
be permitted if approved in advance by the Executive Director. 

 
Selling merchandise on Library property without prior permission from the Executive Director is prohibited. 

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.21 
CAMPAIGNING, PETITIONING, INTERVIEWING, ETC. 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Campaigning, petitioning, interviewing, survey-taking, pamphleteering, canvassing and soliciting are 
prohibited inside the Library building. 

 
Campaigning, petitioning, interviewing, survey-taking, pamphleteering, canvassing and soliciting outside 
the Library building but on Library property are subject to the following requirements: 

 
a. Persons or groups are required to sign in at the Checkout Desk in advance. 
b. Use of the Library property does not indicate the Library’s opposition or endorsement of 

the candidate or issue that is the subject of the petition, interview, campaign or 
discussion. 

c. Permitted areas for campaigning, petitioning, interviewing, survey-taking, 
pamphleteering, canvassing and soliciting outside of the Library building is determined 
by the municipality that owns the library facility. 

d. No person shall block ingress or egress from the Library building. 
e. Permitted times will be limited to the operating hours of the Library. 

 
Campaign material, literature or petitions may not be brought into the Library, posted at the Library or left 
on Library property. 

  

52



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
15 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.22 
CHILDREN IN THE LIBRARY 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 

Use by Children 
Children are welcome and encouraged to use the Library at all times. The Library desires to make each visit 
an important one for the child. A “Child” means a minor under the age of 18. 

 
Rules and Regulations Regarding Children 
 

1. All patrons, including children, are expected to comply with the Library's policies. Parents, 
guardians or responsible caregivers shall review and be fully aware of all Library policies governing 
children, particularly the Internet Use Policy. 

 
2. Parents, guardians and caregivers are responsible for the behavior, safety, and supervision of their 

children regardless of age while in the Library or on Library property. 
 

3. Library staff will not be expected to supervise or monitor children's behavior. Children under the 
age of 8 must be attended by a parent, guardian or responsible caregiver. The parent, guardian or 
responsible caregiver (who must be at least 14 years old) shall remain in the Library at all times, 
within reach. If a child under the age of 8 is attending a Library- sponsored program on the 
premises, the parent, a guardian, or responsible caregiver is to remain on the premises for the 
duration of the program. If a child under the age of 5 is attending a Library-sponsored program on 
the premises, the parent, a guardian, or responsible caregiver is to accompany the child for the 
entire duration of the program. 

 
4. Children of any age who, because of developmental disability, mental illness, or physical disability, 

require supervision or personal care shall be attended by a parent, guardian or responsible 
caregiver at all times. 

 
5. Staff will not be responsible if unattended children of any age leave the Library premises alone or 

with other persons. Further, staff will not be responsible for children 8 years or older who may be 
asked to leave the Library if the child is in violation of Library policy. 

 
6. We request that all unattended children be picked up at least ten minutes before closing time. 

Parents, guardians and responsible caregivers need to be aware of when the Library closes. 
 

7. Children 8 years or older must know their telephone number and other contact information if they 
are unattended at the Library. It is a violation of Library policy to not pick up your unattended child 
immediately if the Library calls. 

 

53



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
16 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

Contact of Parent or Guardian 
Library staff may attempt to contact a parent, legal guardian, custodian or caregiver when: 

 
• The health or safety of an unattended child is in doubt. 
• A child is frightened while alone at the Library. 
• A child has been left unattended for an extended period of time, or multiple times. 
• The unattended child has not been met by a parent, legal guardian, custodian or responsible 

caregiver at closing time. A child is considered unattended at closing time if the child is under the 
age of 8 or the child needs assistance procuring transportation. 

 
Unattended Children at Closing 

If a parent, legal guardian, custodian or caregiver cannot be reached by closing time or fails to arrive within 
a reasonable time after being contacted, Library staff may contact law enforcement officials to take charge 
of the situation involving the unattended child. Library employees are not permitted to transport an 
unattended child or vulnerable adult under any circumstances. 

 
If the parent, legal guardian, custodian or caregiver can be reached by closing time, the staff member shall 
explain the Library’s policy and provide a copy of this policy. 

  

54



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
17 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

 

KDL POLICY 4.1.23 
 FACE MASK REQUIREMENT DURING PANDEMIC 
LAST REVISED 5.20.21 
 
It is the policy of the Kent District Library (KDL) to follow all federal, state and local orders, including the 
Executive Orders of the Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (MDHHS).  When there is a 
federal, state or local order requiring people to wear face coverings while in indoor public spaces, 
KDL shall also require all patrons to wear face coverings while visiting all KDL locations.  
 
In support of the health and safety of all those who enter the library as defined by the MDHSS, all patrons 
and staff (except those exempted as defined by federal, state and local orders) must wear a face 
mask* covering their nose and mouth while inside any KDL location (unless the patron is unable medically 
to tolerate a face covering). Disposable face masks will be provided for those who do not have their own.  
 
Refusing to follow the mask requirement will be considered a violation of the Library Patron 
Responsibilities. Patrons who violate these rules and responsibilities will be asked to leave the 
library. Patrons may appeal this decision by contacting the Executive Director, or the Director’s designee, in 
accordance with KDL Policy 4.5: Right of Appeal: https://www.kdl.org/sites/default/files/kdl-policy-
manual.pdf.  
 
 
Curbside service will be offered as a reasonable accommodation to those without medical conditions who 
do not wish to wear a mask.  
 
 
* MDHHS defines a face mask as a tightly woven cloth or other multi-layer absorbent material that closely 
covers an individual’s mouth and nose. Medical or surgical grade masks are included within this 
definition. The CDC does not recommend  the use of face shields as a substitute for cloth face masks. 
However, a face shield that covers the eyes, nose and mouth can be worn in addition to a cloth mask if 
desired. Moreover, a face shield may be worn by younger children who are not required to wear a cloth 
mask, in other settings when a face mask is not required, or by athletes under certain conditions.   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

KDL POLICY 4.1.24 
SLEEPING IN THE LIBRARY 

55

https://www.michigan.gov/coronavirus/0,9753,7-406-98178_98455-533660--,00.html
https://d4804za1f1gw.cloudfront.net/wp-content/uploads/sites/88/2020/08/10115810/Library-Patron-Responsibilities.pdf
https://d4804za1f1gw.cloudfront.net/wp-content/uploads/sites/88/2020/08/10115810/Library-Patron-Responsibilities.pdf
https://www.kdl.org/sites/default/files/kdl-policy-manual.pdf
https://www.kdl.org/sites/default/files/kdl-policy-manual.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/about-face-coverings.html


   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
18 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

New 05.18.2023 
 
Sleeping in the library is prohibited when the behavior is disruptive to others using the library. Staff may 
intervene when the sleeping is disruptive, if the patron may need medical help, or if the patron is 
unresponsive. Behaviors that may be considered disruptive include but not limited to:  

1. fully laying out on a couch with feet on the furniture;  
2. snoring loudly;  
3. occupying multiple workspaces;  
4. sleeping at a public PC that is needed by others;  
5. leaving a child unattended while sleeping.  

Formatted: Font: (Default) Source Sans Pro

Formatted: Condensed by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Source Sans Pro

Formatted: Condensed by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Source Sans Pro

Formatted: Condensed by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Source Sans Pro

Formatted: Condensed by  0.05 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) Source Sans Pro

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at:  0.31" + Indent at:  0.56"

Commented [LK2]: For formatting consistency, should we 
number the sleeping in the library examples as we do 4.1.10 
acceptable use? 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Source Sans Pro

56



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
19 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

Kent District Library and its branches support the right of all individuals to use the library safely and without 
discrimination. In order to properly maintain a clean, safe, and comfortable environment for our patrons 
and employees, the Kent District Library Board has adopted the following rules and responsibilities: 

 
• Obey all laws, library policies, and local ordinances. Stealing, defacing, or damaging library equipment, 

materials, or facilities is not allowed. 
• Respect other patrons and employees. Do not annoy or harass other persons, engage in loud or 

disruptive conduct, or cause a public disturbance. 
• Solicitation and loitering are not allowed. 
• For your children’s safety, do not leave them unattended. 
• To protect your personal belongings, do not leave them unattended. 
• Shirt and shoes are required. 
• The library is a smoke-free building. 
• No pets allowed in the library. 

 *Service and therapy animals are permitted 
• Offensive odor, including, but not limited to odor due to poor personal hygiene or overpowering 

perfume or cologne, that causes a nuisance is not allowed. 
• In support of the health and safety of all those who enter the library as defined by MDHSS, all patrons 

and staff (except those exempted as defined by federal, state and local orders) must wear mask* 
covering their nose and mouth while inside any KDL location (unless the patron is unable medically 
to tolerate a face covering). Disposable face masks will be provided for those who do not have their 
own. 

 
Patrons who violate these rules and responsibilities will be asked to leave the library. They can appeal this 
decision by contacting the Executive Director or the Executive Director’s designee, in accordance with KDL 
Policy 4.5: Right of Appeal. 
 
 
 

LIBRARY PATRON RESPONSIBILITIES 

57



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
20 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

 
 

KDL POLICY 4.2 
USE + PRESERVATION OF LIBRARY MATERIALS + PROPERTY 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Patrons must not deface, vandalize, or damage library property, or improperly remove Library materials, 
equipment, or furniture. Patrons shall be responsible to reimburse the Library for costs incurred by the 
Library for violating this provision. Patrons shall not cause damage by returning books containing bedbugs, 
cockroaches, moths, other bugs or bringing bedbugs into the Library. 

 

KDL POLICY 4.2.1 
COPYRIGHT POLICY 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
U.S. Copyright law (Title 17 U.S. Code) prohibits the unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 
copyrighted material, except as permitted by the principles of fair use. Additionally, individuals may not 
copy or distribute electronic materials including email, text, images, programs, or data without the explicit 
permission of the copyright holder. Any responsibility for the consequences of copyright infringement lies 
with the user. Kent District Library expressly disclaims any liability or responsibility arising from use of its 
equipment or technology, including use of information obtained through its electronic information 
systems. 
 
 

Formatted: Font color: Red

58



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
21 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

KDL POLICY 4.3 
ACCEPTABLE TECHNOLOGY USE 
LAST REVISED 5.20.21 
 
The Library allows access to a variety of electronic resources. This includes the KDL catalog, the catalogs of 
other libraries, a variety of databases, and the Internet. The Internet stations also provide access to a variety 
of office software. No station provides support for all file types, browser plug-ins, or Internet technologies. 
The Library recognizes this is a dynamic environment with programs and content that constantly changes. 

 
Kent District Library neither has control over resources offered through the Internet nor has complete 
knowledge of what is on the Internet. Information on the Internet may be reliable and current or may be 
inaccurate, out-of-date, and unavailable at times. Some content may be offensive. Library users access the 
Internet at their own discretion. The Internet is not governed by any entity, so there are no limits or checks on 
the kind of information contained there. Only a user can decide on the accuracy, completeness, and currency 
of the content. 

 
Consistent with the Library Privacy Act, MCL 397.601 et seq. (“Privacy Act”), and this Acceptable Use Policy, 
Kent District Library respects the privacy of patrons when they use a Library computer. The Library reserves 
the right, however, to monitor a patron’s use of a Library computer for compliance with this Acceptable Use 
Policy. Although the Library generally shall not retain a record of a patron’s use of a Library computer beyond 
24 hours, the Library may retain such a record for any investigation and determination of a potential or actual 
violation of this Policy (including appeals). 

 
In particular, and without limiting the foregoing, Library staff may produce a screen shot of a Library 
computer for evidentiary purposes if a Library staff member has a reasonable suspicion that a patron is using 
the computer in violation of this Acceptable Use Policy. Any record of a patron’s use, including a screen shot, 
shall be retained by the Library only so long as appropriate for any investigation and determination regarding 
a potential or actual violation. By accepting this Policy prior to using a Library computer, a patron is 
consenting to monitoring of the patron’s use of the Library computer (including screen shots). 

 
Filtering 

In accordance with Federal and State law (the Children's Internet Protection Act, 47 USC §254 and 20 USC 
§101, and Section 6 of the Privacy Act), all Library computers with Internet access are filtered. Note, however, 
that no filter is 100% effective. Parents or legal guardians are responsible for their minor child’s reading, 
listening, and viewing of Library material, including the Internet. 

 
Compliance with the Children’s Internet Protection Act (CIPA) requires filters that block access to visual 
depictions that are obscene or child pornography, as defined by 47 USC §254. CIPA also requires protection 
against access by patrons under age 17 to visual depictions that are harmful to minors, as defined by 47 USC 
§254. A patron who is at least 17 years of age may request the disabling of software used to filter visual 
depictions on a computer used by that patron, provided that he/she will use the unfiltered computer for 

59



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
22 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

bonafide research or other lawful purposes. Library staff will not inquire into the reasons for disabling the 
filter. 

 
Patrons are responsible for complying with this Policy when accessing the Internet. In addition to other 
provisions of this Policy, patrons (including minors) shall not access visual depictions that are obscene or 
child pornography as defined by Federal law (47 USC§254(h)(7)(E), (F)) and shall not access or view obscene 
matter as defined in §2 of 1984 PA 343, MCL 752.362 (PA 343). In addition, patrons who are minors for purposes 
of Federal law shall not access visual depictions that are harmful to minors as defined by Federal law (47 
USC§254(h)(7)(G)) and patrons who are minors under State law shall not access or view sexually explicit 
matter that is harmful to minors as defined in PA 343. Subject to other demands on staff time for library 
services, the Library staff will make a good faith effort to periodically monitor the use of Library computers by 
minors. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Library holds the parents or legal guardians responsible for their 
minor children’s use of the Internet in light of the fallibilities of filters and other demands on Library staff time. 

 
In order to further comply with CIPA the Library has taken certain measures to assist in the safe and effective 
use of the Internet by individuals under the age of 17, as follows: 

 
To address the issue of access by minors to inappropriate matter on the Internet, including material that is 
harmful to minors, the Library: 

 
a. Maintains the filtering program described above to block Internet access to visual depictions that 

are obscene, child pornography and, in the case of use by minors, harmful to minors. 
b. Allows adults to request that content filters be turned off. 

 
To address the issue of the safety and security of minors when using electronic mail, chat rooms, and other 
forms of direct electronic communications, as well as unauthorized disclosure of, use, and dissemination of 
personal identification regarding minors, the Library urges minors to follow the safety guidelines below: 

 
1. Never give out identifying information such as home address, school name, or telephone number. 
2. Let parents or guardians decide whether personal information such as age or financial information 

should be provided online. 
3. Never arrange a face-to-face meeting with someone through a computer without parent or guardian 

approval. 
4. Never respond to messages that are suggestive, obscene, or threatening. 
5. Remember that people online may not be who they say they are. 

 
To address the issue of unauthorized access, including so-called "hacking" and other unlawful activities by 
minors online, minors and all other Library Internet users are required to agree to an online Internet User 
Agreement that states that “Library computers are not to be used for any illegal activity.” 

 
In addition, if a patron requests a specific site to be unblocked from the filtering program, the branch manager 

60



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
23 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

shall refer the request for review by administrative staff to determine whether it contains obscene matter or 
sexually explicit matter that is harmful to minors. If it does not, the administrative staff may authorize the 
system wide unblocking of the site. The patron will be informed of the decision in writing. The decision may 
be appealed in writing within ten (10) business days to the Executive Director, or the Executive Director’s 
designee, whose decision shall be final. 

 
Violations 

The Library's computers, network, and Internet connection may not be used for any illegal activity or in an 
unauthorized manner in violation of this Acceptable Use Policy. Illegal acts will be prosecuted to the full 
extent of the law. 

 
Users violating this Policy will first be asked to comply. For individuals who repeatedly violate this Policy after 
previous warnings, the Library reserves the right to prohibit use of the Library’s computers, network, Internet 
connection, and/or the Library for a period up to 72 hours by action of the branch manager or the staff 
member in charge. An individual may appeal this decision to the Executive Director, or the Executive 
Director’s designee. 

 
The Library also reserves the right to prohibit use of the Library’s computers, network, Internet connection, 
and/or the Library for a period of time exceeding 72 hours by action of the Executive Director. In such 
instances, an individual will be informed of the decision in writing by certified mail, and may appeal this 
decision in writing within ten (10) business days to the Executive Director, or the Executive Director’s 
designee, whose decision shall be final. 

 
Time and Other Limits 

Each individual is allowed to use the Library’s public computers one (1) hour per day. More time may be 
allowed if computer stations are free. Extensions for additional time are done electronically at those branches 
with reservation software. At branches without this software, patrons may ask staff to extend the time limit. 

 
All computers will be electronically shut down five (5) minutes before the Library closes. 

 
Precautions 
Software and other files downloaded from the Internet may contain viruses or spyware that may infect other 
computers. Kent District Library is not responsible for damage or loss that may occur from use of the Library’s 
computers. 

 
Since the Internet is not secure, patrons are responsible to ensure that their personal data is not 
compromised. Sending any information, including credit card numbers, via the Internet is at the sole risk of 
the user. Kent District Library has no control over the security of this data. 

 

  

61



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
24 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

KDL POLICY 4.3.1 
PHOTOGRAPHY + RECORDING POLICY 
LAST REVISED 01.21.22. 
 
The Kent District Library permits photography and other forms of recording (videography, filming, audio,etc.) 
under the conditions listed below to the extent that it does not interfere with the operations, programs and 
activities of the Library. 
 

1. Casual amateur photography and other forms of recording are permitted for patrons and visitors 
provided it does not interfere with the operations of the Library or individuals using the Library and 
not capture any identifiable likenesses of individuals without their permission. Photographers are 
responsible for securing the necessary releases. Anyone photographing or recording with the library 
must respect other patrons and employees. Do not annoy of harass other persons, engage in loud or 
disruptive conduct or cause a public disturbance (See Library Patron Responsibilities which detailed 
in Section 4.2).  

 
2. No commercial, media photography or recording may occur in Library facilities without prior written 

permission. 
 

3. Permission may be revoked at any time if the photographer or person recording fails to comply with 
the terms of this policy or other rules and regulations of the Library. 

 

KDL POLICY 4.3.2 
SOCIAL NETWORKING POLICY 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
The Kent District Library blog and sponsored social networking outlets (e.g., Facebook profiles, Twitter 
feeds, YouTube videos, etc.) are a place for individuals to share opinions about library related subjects. 
Comments are encouraged, but KDL reserves the right to edit, modify, or delete any comment. The 
following content will be removed: 

• Potentially libelous comments 
• Obscene or racist comments 
• Personal attacks, insults, or threatening language 
• Plagiarized material 
• Private, personal information published without consent 
• Commercial promotions or spam 
• Comments and/or hyperlinks unrelated to a given post, forum, or discussion 

 
The Kent District Library reserves the right to monitor all content before it is posted and to modify or remove 
any messages or postings that it deems, in its sole discretion, to be abusive, defamatory, in violation of the 

62



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
25 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

copyright, trademark right, or other intellectual property right of any third party, or otherwise inappropriate. 
 

By posting a comment, individuals agree to indemnify the Kent District Library and its officers and employees 
from and against all liabilities, judgments, damages, and costs (including attorney's fees) incurred by, arising 
out of, or related to the content posted. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Kent District Library is not obligated to take any such actions, and will not be 
responsible or liable for content posted. 

63



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
26 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

KDL POLICY 4.4 
DISCIPLINARY PROCESS FOR LIBRARY FACILITIES 
LAST REVISED 6.14.19 
 
The Executive Director or  the Executive Director’s designee may restrict access to Library facilities with 
immediate dismissal of the patron from the premises, by suspending the patron’s access to Library 
facilities for a set period of time, or by denying access to specific services and/or programs pursuant to this 
policy. If necessary, the local police may be called to intervene. 

 
A. Incident Reports 
Library staff shall record in writing in the form of an Incident Report any violation of this policy that 
resulted in multiple verbal warnings or a suspension of Library privileges. By the end of the day on which 
the incident occurred, an Incident Report shall be written and forwarded to the Executive Director for 
logging and review. The report should include physical descriptions in addition to the name of the patron. 
A copy of the suspension of privileges letter should be attached, if applicable. 

 
B. Violation of the Policy – Suspension of Privileges 
Unless otherwise provided in this policy, (see Section C below), the Library shall handle violations as 
follows: 

 
1. Initial Violation: Library patrons observed violating this policy will be asked to cease the 

violation with a verbal request. If the patron does not comply with the request, he or she will be 
asked to leave the building for the day. If he or she refuses, the police may be called. 

2. Subsequent Violations: The Executive Director or the Executive Director’s authorized designee 
may further limit or suspend the patron’s Library privileges if infractions continue. Such 
limitation or revocation shall be in writing specifying the nature of the violation. Subsequent 
violations of the same rule shall result in additional suspensions of increasing length. 

 
C. Violations that Affect Safety and Security 
Violations involving verbal abuse, violence, threatening behaviors, sexual harassment, vandalism, drug 
sale or use or attempted drug sale or use, intoxication, theft or attempted theft, physical harassment, 
sexual misconduct or any behavior that threatens the safety and security of staff and/or patrons shall be 
handled as follows: 

 
1. Initial Violation: The police will be called immediately if patron is asked to leave and does not 

comply. If the conduct constitutes a violation of local, state, or federal law, arrest or criminal 
prosecution may ensue. Violations of this nature will result in an immediate minimum two-
week suspension of Library privileges in order to give the Library sufficient time to investigate 
the incident. 

64



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
27 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

 
After the investigation is completed, the Executive Director or his/her designee may add 
additional time to the initial limitation or suspension period. 

 
2. Subsequent Violations: The police will be called immediately. If the conduct constitutes a 

violation of local, state, or federal law, arrest or criminal prosecution may ensue. The 
Executive Director or the Executive Director’s authorized designee, may further limit or 
suspend the patron’s Library privileges in escalating responses, which will be documented in 
writing. Subsequent violations of the same rule will result in additional suspensions of 
increasing length.

65



   
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY MANUAL 
28 

 
 

Formatted: Header, Indent: Left:  -0.08"

Formatted Table

Formatted: Header, Centered

Formatted: Header, Right, Right:  -0.08"

Formatted: Header

 

KDL POLICY 4.5 
RIGHT OF APPEAL 
LAST REVISED 10.25.18 
 
Patrons may appeal a decision to limit or suspend privileges by sending a written appeal to the Library 
Board within ten (10) business days of the date the privileges were suspended or limited. The appeal 
should be sent to the President of the Library Board. The decision of the Library Board is final. 
 

66



April

July

May

August

June

September

January February March

October October November

Thursday, January 19 at 4:30 PM
KDL Service + Meeting Center
814 West River Center Dr NE

Regular Meeting 

Thursday, February 16 at 4:30 PM
KDL Service + Meeting Center
814 West River Center Dr NE

Regular Meeting 

Thursday, March 16 at 4:30 PM
*KDL Amy Van Andel Library 

7215 Headley Street SE
Regular Meeting

 

Thursday, April 20 at 4:30 PM
KDL Service + Meeting Center
814 West River Center Dr NE

Regular Meeting 

Thursday, May 18 at 4:30 PM
*KDL Spencer Branch 

14960 Meddler Ave
Regular Meeting

Thursday, June 15 at 4:30 PM
KDL Service + Meeting Center
814 West River Center Dr NE

Regular Meeting

Thursday, July 20 at 4:30 PM
*KDL Plainfield Branch

2650 5 Mile Rd NE
KDL Service + Meeting Center
814 West River Center Dr NE 

Regular Meeting

Thursday, August 17  at 4:30 PM
KDL Service + Meeting Center
814 West River Center Dr NE

*KDL Plainfield Branch
2650 5 Mile Rd NE
Regular Meeting

Thursday, September 21 at 4:30 PM
*KDL Gaines Branch
421 68th Street SE
Regular Meeting

Thursday, October 12 at 4:30 PM
KDL Service + Meeting Center
814 West River Center Dr NE

Budget Work Session

Thursday, October 26 at 4:30 PM
KDL Service + Meeting Center
814 West River Center Dr NE

 Regular Meeting

Thursday, November 16 at 7:00 PM
KDL Service + Meeting Center
814 West River Center Dr NE
Regular Meeting Including

Budget Hearing

2023 Board of Trustees Meeting Dates 

*Indicates a Branch Hosted Meeting 
December

Thursday, December 21 at 4:30 PM
KDL Service + Meeting Center
814 West River Center Dr NE
Regular Meeting including

Executive Director's Evaluation

67


	May 2023 Board of Trustees Cover Page
	05.18.2023 Board of Trustee Agenda 
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Meeting Agenda


	04.20.2023 - Board Meeting Minutes
	BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Meeting Minutes


	Board Letter Comstock Park
	April Financials
	Check Register - Board Report
	April Voided Checks
	April 2023 Director's  Report
	April for May 2023 Monthly Projects Report
	April 2023 Statistical Summary
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries May 2023
	Staff Changes & Anniversaries
	May 2023


	BOARD OF TRUSTEES ATTENDANCE-04.2023
	05.May 2023 KDL Policy Manual
	KDL POLICY 3.9
	LIBRARY + PERSONAL VEHICLES
	KDL POLICY 4.1
	SAFETY + PERSONAL BEHAVIOR
	KDL POLICY 4.1.1
	VIOLATIONS OF LAW
	KDL POLICY 4.1.2
	WEAPONS
	KDL POLICY 4.1.3
	DRUGS, ALCOHOL + SMOKING
	KDL POLICY 4.1.4
	ANIMALS
	KDL POLICY 4.1.5
	PERSONAL PROPERTY
	KDL POLICY 4.1.6
	BLOCKING OF AISLES, DOORS + ENTRANCES
	KDL POLICY 4.1.7
	STAFF-ONLY AREAS
	KDL POLICY 4.1.8
	INTERFERENCE WITH STAFF
	KDL POLICY 4.1.9
	UNAUTHORIZED USE
	KDL POLICY 4.1.10
	CONSIDERATE USE
	KDL POLICY 4.1.11
	NOISE
	KDL POLICY 4.1.12
	ODOR
	KDL POLICY 4.1.14
	FOOD + DRINK
	KDL POLICY 4.1.15
	RESTROOMS
	KDL POLICY 4.1.16
	DRESS CODE
	KDL POLICY 4.1.17
	HARRASSMENT
	KDL POLICY 4.1.18
	IDENTIFICATION
	KDL POLICY 4.1.19
	RECREATIONAL EQUIPMENT + PERSONAL TRANSPORT DEVICES
	KDL POLICY 4.1.20
	PANHANDLING, SOLICITATION + SELLING
	KDL POLICY 4.1.21
	CAMPAIGNING, PETITIONING, INTERVIEWING, ETC.
	KDL POLICY 4.1.22
	CHILDREN IN THE LIBRARY
	Use by Children
	Rules and Regulations Regarding Children
	Contact of Parent or Guardian
	Unattended Children at Closing

	KDL POLICY 4.1.23
	FACE MASK REQUIREMENT DURING PANDEMIC
	KDL POLICY 4.1.24
	SLEEPING IN THE LIBRARY
	LIBRARY PATRON RESPONSIBILITIES
	KDL POLICY 4.2
	USE + PRESERVATION OF LIBRARY MATERIALS + PROPERTY
	KDL POLICY 4.2.1
	COPYRIGHT POLICY
	KDL POLICY 4.3
	ACCEPTABLE TECHNOLOGY USE
	Filtering
	Violations
	Time and Other Limits
	Precautions

	KDL POLICY 4.3.1
	PHOTOGRAPHY + RECORDING POLICY
	KDL POLICY 4.3.2
	SOCIAL NETWORKING POLICY
	KDL POLICY 4.4
	DISCIPLINARY PROCESS FOR LIBRARY FACILITIES
	A. Incident Reports
	B. Violation of the Policy – Suspension of Privileges
	C. Violations that Affect Safety and Security

	KDL POLICY 4.5
	RIGHT OF APPEAL

	2023 Board of Trustees Meeting Dates



